IN 7	THE SUPREME COURT O CASE NO. 69,87	
	VS. STATE OF FLORID	ioner,

ON CERTIFIED QUESTION OF GREAT PUBLIC IMPORTANCE FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA, FOURTH DISTRICT

4

INITIAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER JOSE PASTOR

> JON A. SALE, ESQ. BENEDICT P. KUEHNE, ESQ.

BIERMAN, SONNETT, SHOHAT & SALE, P.A. 200 S.E. First Street, **#**500 Miami, Florida 33131 Telephone: (305)358-7477

Counsel for Petitioner JOSE PASTOR

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS
A. Course of Proceedings and Disposition Belowl
B. Factual Recitation4
1. The Motion to Suppress4
2. The Trial
SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT9
STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW12
ARGUMENT
POINT I
THE QUANTITY OF DRUGS INVOLVED IN A CRIME IS NOT A PROPER REASON TO DEPART FROM SENTENCING GUIDELINES WHERE THE QUANTITY IS NOT SO GREAT TO JUSTIFY DEVIATION FROM THE MANDATORY MINIMUM
A. The Quantity of Drugs Is Not A Clear And Con- vincing Reason To Warrant Departure From The Mandatory Minimum15
l. The Quantity Of Cocaine Is Not A Valid Departure Factor15
 The Quantity Of Cocaine Does Not Justify A Departure In This Case
B. Resentencing Is To Take Place Before An Impar- tial Judge21
POINT II
THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DENYING THE MOTION TO SUPPRESS EVIDENCE SEIZED IN VIOLATION OF THE DEFEN- DANT'S RIGHTS GUARANTEED BY THE UNITED STATES AND

-i-

.

FLORIDA CONSTITUTIONS......25

A		The Detention Of The Defendant, Considering All Available Circumstances, Was A Seizure Implicating The Constitutional Guarantee Against Unreasonable Searches And Seizures25
B		The Officers Lacked Reasonable Suspicion To Effectuate The Stop32
С		Once Detained, The Defendant Did Not Freely And Voluntarily Consent
E		The Statements Are The Fruits Of The Poisonous Tree40
P	POINT	' III
C	CONTI DANT	TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DENYING THE REQUESTED NUANCE, WHICH WAS NECESSARY SO THAT THE DEFEN- COULD OBTAIN A FAIR TRIAL BY BEING REPRESENTED REPARED COUNSEL
P	POINT	' IV
I	MPER	PROSECUTOR'S CLOSING ARGUMENT CONSTITUTED AN MISSIBLE COMMENT ON THE DEFENDANT'S FAILURE TO FY, THEREBY WARRANTING A NEW TRIAL
CONCL	LUSIO	N49
CERTI	IFICA	TE OF SERVICE

TABLE OF CITATIONS

Page

......

Cases

Albritton v. State, 476 So.2d 158 (Fla. 1985)15
Alzate v. State, 466 So.2d 331 (Fla. 3d DCA 1985)32
Andres v. State, 468 So.2d 1084 (Fla. 3d DCA 1985)48
Atwaters v. State, 495 So.2d 1219 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986)13
Baker v. State, 466 So.2d 1144 (Fla. 3d DCA 1985)18
Banzo v. State, 464 So.2d 620 (Fla. 2d DCA 1985)18, 21
Berriel v. State, 233 So.2d 163 (Fla. 4th DCA 1970)45
Berry v. State, 458 So.2d 1155 (Fla. 1st DCA 1984)22
Birt v. Montgomery, 725 F.2d 587 (11th Cir. 1984)43
Boyett v. State, 452 So.2d 958 (Fla. 2d DCA 1984)21
Brewer v. Williams, 430 U.S. 387, 97 S.Ct. 1232 (1977)
Brown v. Beto, 468 F.2d 1284 (5th Cir. 1972)
Brown v. Texas, 443 U.S. 47, 99 S.Ct. 2637 (1979)26, 30, 33
Bumper v. North Carolina, 391 U.S. 543, 88 S.Ct. 1788 (1968)
Callaghan v. State, 462 So.2d 832 (Fla. 4th DCA 1984)18
Coleman v. State, 333 So.2d 503 (Fla. 4th DCA 1976)33

Colvin v. State,
So.2d , 12 F.L.W. 334 (Fla. 2d DCA Jan. 21, 1987)
Cronin v. State, 470 So.2d 802 (Fla. 4th DCA 1985)20
Cumbie v. State, 378 So.2d l (Fla. 1st DCA 1978)49
Darden v. State, 329 So.2d 287 (Fla. 1976)49
Davis v. Mississippi, 394 U.S. 721, 89 S.Ct. 1394 (1969)26
Dunaway v. New York, 442 U.S. 200, 99 S.Ct. 2284 (1979)32
Florida v. Rodriguez, 469 U.S. 1, 105 S.Ct. 308 (1984)31
Florida v. Royer, 460 U.S. 491, 103 S.Ct. 1319 (1983)31
Gallo v. State, 483 So.2d 876 (Fla. 2d DCA 1986)19, 21
Gallucci v. State, 371 So.2d 148 (Fla. 4th DCA 1979)22
Garcia v. State, So.2d , 12 F.L.W. 125 (Fla. 3d DCA Dec. 23, 1986)16, 21
Goldberg v. State, 407 So.2d 352 (Fla. 4th DCA 1981)40
Guerrero v. State, 484 So.2d 59 (Fla. 2d DCA 1986)16, 18
Holley v. State, 484 So.2d 634 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986)42
Holman v. State, 347 So.2d 832 (Fla. 3d DCA 1977), <u>cert. denied</u> , 354 So.2d 981 (Fla. 1978)43
Horvitz v. State, 433 So.2d 545 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983)

•

Howard v. State, 230 So.2d 1 (Fla. 1969).....28 Irwin v. State, 479 So.2d 153 (Fla. 2d DCA 1985), rev. denied, 488 So.2d 830 (Fla. 1986).....15, 16 Jacobson v. State, Javor v. United States, 724 F.2d 831 (9th Cir. 1984).....44 Johnson v. State, 438 So.2d 774 (Fla. 1983), cert. denied, Jordan v. State, Knight v. State, 394 So.2d 997 (Fla. 1981).....45 Lusk v. State, 446 So.2d 1038 (Fla. 1984), cert. denied, U.S. , 105 S.Ct. 229 (1984)......41 Major v. State, 389 So.2d 1203 (Fla. 3d DCA 1980), rev. denied, Mansfield v. State, 430 So.2d 586 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983)......44 Martinez v. State, Miller v. Fenton, Mitchell v. State, 458 So.2d 10 (Fla. 1st DCA 1984).....15 Morgano v. State, 439 So.2d 924 (Fla. 2d DCA 1983)......44 Morris v. Slappy, 461 U.S. 1, 103 S.Ct. 1610 (1983).....41 Moya v. United States,

Palladino v. State, 267 So.2d 837 (Fla. 3d DCA 1972)44
Palmer v. State, 467 So.2d 1063 (Fla. 3d DCA 1985)32
Pastor v. State, 498 So.2d 962 (Fla. 4th DCA 1986)4
Pekar v. United States, 315 F.2d 319 (5th Cir. 1963)38
Price v. State, 267 So.2d 39 (Fla. 4th DCA 1972)49
Pursell v. State, 483 So.2d 94 (Fla. 2d DCA 1986)16
Raffield v. State, 362 So.2d 138 (Fla. 1st DCA 1978)
Reid v. Georgia, 448 U.S. 438, 100 S.Ct. 2752 (1980)32
Restrepo v. State, 438 So.2d 6 (Fla. 3d DCA 1983)32
Robinson v. State, 388 So.2d 286 (Fla. 1st DCA 1980)40
Royer v. State, 389 So.2d 1007 (Fla. 3d DCA 1979)(en banc)26, 35
Samosky v. State, 448 So.2d 509 (Fla. 3d DCA 1983)47
Savoie v. State, 422 So.2d 308 (Fla. 1982)4
Schneckloth v. Bustamonte, 412 U.S. 218, 93 S.Ct. 2041 (1973)37
Shapiro v. State, 390 So.2d 344 (Fla. 1980), cert. denied, 450 U.S. 982, 101 S.Ct. 1519 (1981)37
Smith v. State, 454 So.2d 90 (Fla. 2d DCA 1984)15
State v. Barton, 194 So.2d 241 (Fla. 1967)45

т

r

2	State v. Battleman, 374 So.2d 636 (Fla. 3d DCA 1979)34
5	State v. DiGuilio, 491 So.2d 1129 (Fla. 1986)47
5	State v. Benitez, 395 So.2d 514 (Fla. 1981)19
ę	State v. Frost, 374 So.2d 593 (Fla. 3d DCA 1979)27
ŝ	State v. Gonzalez, 447 So.2d 1015 (Fla. 3d DCA 1984)27
5	State v. Kinchen, 490 So.2d 21 (Fla. 1985)47
5	State v. Marshall, 476 So.2d 150 (Fla. 1985)47, 48
5	State v. Mischler, 488 So.2d 524 (Fla. 1986)15, 18
5	State v. Navarro, 464 So.2d 137 (Fla. 3d DCA 1984)(en banc)
5	State v. Othen, 300 So.2d 732 (Fla. 2d DCA 1974)38
5	State v. Rice, 464 So.2d 684 (Fla. 5th DCA 1985)21
9	State v. Riocabo, 372 So.2d 126 (Fla.3d DCA), <u>cert. dismissed</u> , 378 So.2d 348 (Fla. 1979)28
5	State v. Ryan, 413 So.2d 411 (Fla. 4th DCA 1982)44
5	State v. Santamaria, 464 So.2d 197 (Fla. 3d DCA 1985)32
S	State v. Sheperd, 479 So.2d 106 (Fla. 1985)48
S	State v. Smith, 477 So.2d 658 (Fla. 5th DCA 1985)32
5	State v. Twelves, 463 So.2d 493 (Fla. 2d DCA 1985)15

1

.

Stewart v. State, 420 So.2d 862 (Fla. 1982), <u>cert. denied</u> , 460 U.S. 1103, 103 S.Ct. 1802 (1983)45
Talavera v. State, 186 So.2d 811 (Fla. 2d DCA 1966)
Taylor v. State, 355 So.2d 180 (Fla. 3d DCA), <u>cert. denied</u> , 361 So.2d 835 (Fla. 1978)39
Terry v. Ohio, 392 U.S. 1, 88 S.Ct. 1868 (1968)26, 33
United States v. Andrews, 600 F.2d 563 (6th Cir. 1979)34
United States v. Austin, 585 F.2d 1271 (5th Cir. 1978)48
United States v. Ballard, 573 F.2d 913 (5th Cir. 1978)35
United States v. Berry, 670 F.2d 583 (5th Cir. Unit B 1982) (en banc)26, 29, 35
United States v. Bowles, 625 F.2d 526 (5th Cir. 1980)29
United States v. Brown, 731 F.2d 1491 (11th Cir. 1984)35
United States v. Elsoffer, 671 F.2d 1294 (11th Cir. 1982)
United States v. Gooding, 695 F.2d 78 (4th Cir. 1982)
United States v. Jefferson, 650 F.2d 854 (6th Cir. 1981)36
United States v. Mendenhall, 446 U.S. 544, 100 S.Ct. 1870 (1980)25
United States v. Parker, 722 F.2d 179 (5th Cir. 1983)40
United States v. Phelps, 443 F.2d 246 (5th Cir. 1981)29

r 1



United States v. Place, 462 U.S. 696, 103 S.Ct. 2637 (1983)26
United States v. Robinson, 625 F.2d 1211 (5th Cir. 1980)
United States v. Waksal, 709 F.2d 653 (11th Cir. 1983)30
United States v. Wylie, 569 F.2d 62 (D.C. Cir. 1977)27
White v. State, 348 So.2d 368 (Fla. 3d DCA 1977), <u>aff'd</u> , 377 So.2d 1149 (Fla. 1979)46, 47
Williams v. State, 438 So.2d 781 (Fla. 1983), <u>cert. denied</u> , 465 U.S. 1109, 104 S.Ct. 1617 (1984)41
Wilson v. Mintzes, 761 F.2d 275 (6th Cir. 1985)43
Wong Sun v. United States, 371 U.S. 471, 83 S.Ct. 407 (1963)40

Constitutional Provisions and Statutes

United States Constitution Fourth Amendment	
Florida Constitution Article I, Section 12	
Florida Statutes §893.135	

Other Authorities

r 1

Fla.	Bar	Code	Prof.	Resp.,	Canon	6	• • • • •	• • • • •	 • • • •	• • • •	.43
]	Rule	3.701	L(d)	iminal :	•••••						

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

A. Course of Proceedings and Disposition Below.

The State Attorney for the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit charged Jose Pastor with trafficking in excess of four hundred grams of cocaine (R 432). $\frac{1}{}$ At arraignment, the Public Defender's Office received an appointment to represent Pastor (R 234-235); retained counsel substituted soon thereafter (R 433). Pastor has remained incarcerated since his arrest.

Pastor moved to suppress evidence and statements obtained from him by police (R 434-444). Circuit Judge Fleet, then presiding over the case, held an evidentiary hearing on that motion (R 3). The hearing reconvened the following week (R 77), at which time defense counsel advised the judge that Pastor was not going to testify (R 78). The court reserved ruling on the motion until the June 21 status conference, when the judge announced that, although he was "really troubled" by the case, he was denying the motion to suppress even after considering the testimony of the "accused" (R 83-85, 445). The court then suggested that Pastor consider a no contest plea (R 84-85). This prompted the prosecutor to announce that in order "to maintain some type of an appearance of consistent credibility," Pastor could only plead "open to the Court" (R 85).

On July 15, defense counsel moved to withdraw, citing personal and financial disputes with Pastor and his family (R 88-

-1-

 $[\]frac{1}{2}$ The Record on Appeal in the lower tribunal contained four volumes, each numbered sequentially. The symbol "R" followed by a page number indicates a reference to the record. The symbol "SR" refers to the Supplemental Record on Appeal. Throughout this brief, the parties are referred to as they appear in the trial court and by their proper names.

92). Pastor did not seek this withdrawal, but acceded to the request, stating that "[i]f we can't both of us agree, it is better that he withdraws" (R 96). Judge Fleet granted the withdrawal (R 101) and, after cautioning Pastor that the case was trial ready and would not be continued (R 101-103), appointed the Public Defender's Office and set the case for August 19, with a status conference on August 16 (R 103-104).

At the time of the Friday status report, the Assistant Public Defender assigned to the case -- Bernard I. Bober -- told Judge Fleet that he had just received the case file that day and was not prepared for trial. Judge Fleet denied the requested continuance without prejudice to see whether counsel could be ready after the weekend (R 227-230). On the day scheduled for trial, August 19, retained counsel appeared to advise Circuit Judge Stone, who substituted for an ailing Judge Fleet, of his retention during the weekend and the need for a continuance (R 231-232). On the same day, Judge Fleet caused a memorandum to be placed in the court file relating the following (R 448):

> Defendant originally retained Ed Malavenda and the case progressed to one or two continu-Then Malavenda asked for and received ances. permission to withdraw because the defendant's family was threatening Malavenda. A P.D. was appointed. Mr. Sales notified the P.D. that his office was asked to come into the case and P.D. then did nothing on the case. Last week Mr. Sales told Mr. Bober, the P.D. that he was not going to come into the case and the file was given to Bober the P.D. Last Friday, Aug. 16th at the docket call, the whole history was told again and the S.A. opposed vigorously to any continuance and the continuance was denied.

> Over the weekend, money was given to Sales and now Sales says he is coming into the case.

> > -2-

Neither Pastor nor counsel were notified that the judge was entering this memorandum into the file and neither had an opportunity to challenge the facts asserted in the memorandum.

Judge Stone assigned the case for trial to Circuit Judge M. Daniel Futch and the case commenced on August 21 (R 106). Both retained counsel -- Robert M. Duboff -- and Assistant Public Defender Bober appeared for Pastor (R 109). After completion of jury selection, Judge Futch begrudgingly allowed counsel to discuss their trial unpreparedness (R 227) and to relate circumstances surrounding the case which required both lawyers to request a continuance (R 227-244). Judge Futch refused to continue the case, $\frac{2}{}$ concluding that Pastor had the benefit of counsel and the "time has come to fish or cut bait." (R 233).

During trial, Pastor preserved his objection to the introduction of illegally seized evidence (R 236, 273-274). At the conclusion of the evidence, Pastor moved for a judgment of acquittal.

The jury found the Defendant guilty as charged (R 420, 456). Pastor waived preparation of a presentence report (R 422-423, 426). The State argued for a sentence in excess of the minimum mandatory fifteen years (R 426-428). The court departed from the guidelines, imposing the maximum 30-year sentence and a \$250,000 fine (R 428-429, 457-458). The trial judge offered three reasons in support of his sentencing deviation (SR):

-3-

 $[\]frac{2}{}$ Judge Futch also advised Assistant Public Defender Bober that he intended to notify The Florida Bar and the Supreme Court that Bober did not prepare for trial notwithstanding the appointment of the Public Defender (R 229-230).

- a. The defendant travelled under a false name before he was arrested.
- b. The defendant admitted to the police that he was a middleman drug dealer.
- c. The defendant possessed approximately 7 times more than the amount of cocaine required for a 15 year mandatory minimum sentence. Specifically, the defendant possessed over 3,000 grams of cocaine (3 kilograms). A 15 year mandatory minimum sentence requires at least 400 grams.

On appeal, Pastor raised four issues: (1) denial of the motion to suppress; (2) denial of the motion for continuance; (3) improper closing argument by the prosecutor which unfairly commented on the Defendant's failure to testify; and (4) improper sentencing departure. The Fourth District affirmed the convictions but reversed the departure sentence and remanded the case for resentencing. <u>Pastor v. State</u>, 498 So.2d 962 (Fla. 4th DCA 1986). The Fourth District certified the following question:

May the quantity of drugs involved in a crime be a proper reason to support departure from the sentencing guidelines?

Pastor sought review in this court of the certified question and requests that this court exercise its discretion in reviewing several other issues involved in this appeal. $\frac{3}{}$

B. Factual Recitation.

1. The Motion To Suppress.

Undercover Detectives O'Connor and Zeno of the Hollywood Police Department were assigned to the Hollywood Amtrak Station on January 8, 1985 (R 8-12, 60-61). They arrived at the

<u>3</u>/ Once the Supreme Court accepts jurisdiction to resolve a case, it may in its discretion consider other issues. <u>Savoie v.</u> State, 422 So.2d 308 (Fla. 1982).

station in their undercover vehicle at 5:30 p.m. (R 12, 60). They were to look for "suspicious" narcotics activity. The two officers anticipated the arrival of a train to New York, expected every afternoon between 6:13 and 6:15 p.m., with departure immediately thereafter (R 26, 61, 66).

As O'Connor and Zeno walked to the platform, they observed a casually dressed young man, later identified as Pastor, sitting alongside a concrete planter in the waiting area (R 13-14, 62). The police passed the Defendant on their way to the Amtrak office, where they obtained a copy of the passenger manifest (R 12-13, 61). Only one Hispanic sounding name, Jose Pastor, was on the list. This person was travelling to New York by sleeper car (R 12-13). According to the manifest, when Pastor made the reservation he did not leave a "call back" number (R 13). Less than a dozen names were on the manifest, and fewer people than that were in the station (R 13, 61-62).

O'Connor and Zeno scanned the waiting area; they settled their attention on the only Hispanic-looking person, Pastor (R 14, 63). No one else was surveilled with the same intensity as Pastor, who appeared nervous "for some reason," looking about the area and minding other people's business. The undercover officers believed that Pastor saw them: "[Pastor] was interested in myself and my partner, where we went, his eyes basically followed us" (R 14-15). According to Zeno, Pastor was the only one acting in an abnormal manner, because he was nervous and looking around (R 63-64).

The officers surveilled Pastor for at least thirty minutes, until the boarding position was announced (R 15, 65).

-5-

Pastor stood up, carrying his single bag, and walked toward the designated boarding position (R 15, 65). The police, who had focused their attention on the Defendant (R 27, 64), made a decision to ask Pastor about contraband (R 16). $\frac{4}{}$ By this time -- 6:10 p.m. (R 12, 26) -- the train was in sight and nearing the station (R 15-16).

As the Defendant moved toward his designated boarding area, O'Connor and Zeno approached him. $\frac{5}{}$ The Defendant was still walking when O'Connor identified himself as a policeman, causing the Defendant to stop dead in his tracks (R 29, 68). To move forward, Pastor would have had to manuever between the two men (R 74). Both officers displayed Hollywood Police Department identification, as O'Connor inquired whether Pastor would not mind talking (R 16). The Defendant responded "no." O'Connor interpreted this "no" as meaning "yes," that Pastor wanted to talk with him (R 16-17). O'Connor, without seeking clarification, requested that the Defendant produce his boarding pass (R 17). $\frac{6}{}$ The Defendant complied (R 17). The boarding pass was in Pastor's correct name (R 18). Pastor told O'Connor that he intended to board the train (R 17). O'Connor returned the boarding pass and admonished the Defendant about the local "narcotics problem" (R 17-18).

 $[\]frac{4}{}$ This timing was a tactical decision by the police (R 67). They wanted to make sure that Pastor would be boarding (R 28). This timing had a measurable impact on the Defendant.

 $[\]frac{5}{}$ Both police officers presented a physically imposing presence (R 69-70).

 $[\]frac{6}{1}$ According to O'Connor, standard procedure required him to ask Pastor for additional identification, such as a driver's license (R 31-32). O'Connor could not recall if he followed standard procedure (R 32).

O'Connor then solicited Pastor's assistance in combatting the problem by permitting a search of his luggage (R 18). Even as the train neared the boarding station, in full sight and sound of the awaiting passengers, O'Connor blandly stated that the Defendant did not have to comply (R 19-20, 71). Neither officer told the Defendant of the consequences of noncompliance (R 33, 71), or that the Defendant was free to leave or board the train if he desired (R 33). $\frac{7}{}$

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