IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JOSE PASTOR,

Petitioner,

V.

CASE NO. 69-879

COURT

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ANSWER BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

RICHARD G. BARTMON Assistant Attorney General 111 Georgia Avenue - Suite 204 West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 Telephone (305) 837-5062

Counsel for Respondent

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The quantity of drugs possessed by Petitioner, which was more than three times the amount required for conviction of the subject cocaine trafficking offense, is a vaild and appropriate basis for a guidelines departure sentence. Such a factor is entirely consistent with the stated purpose of the guidelines to tailor punishment, commensurate with the severity of the crime, and allow departures based on particular circumstances of the convicted offense. Such a conclusion is in accord with virtually all Florida appellate decisions, which have examined the quantity of drugs, as a basis for departure sentencing. This conclusion is further supported by analogous decisions of this Court, permitting departure based on excessive force, and extensive psychological trauma

Since the guidelines themselves do not provide for any aggravation in amount of drugs, beyond the mere "floor" and "ceiling" parameters of the drug trafficking statute, the quantity of drugs can not be said to be improper to consider, as an "inherent component" of the offense. Moreover, the maximum term of 30 years, provided by the drug trafficking law for punishment of cocaine trafficking, beyond the respective mandatory minimum terms, based on amount, encourages individualized treatment of defendants, beyond the statutory minimum term. This circumstance is in no way inconsistent with, or contrary to, the sentencing guidelines.

Petitioner's challenge to the excessiveness of his sentence, can no longer be reviewed by this Court, based on procedural changes in the law, that removed jurisdiction of Florida appellate courts to review the extent of a departure sentence. Petitioner's claims in mitigation need not be addressed, because the Fourth District has provided for consideration of such factors on re-sentencing. Finally, Petitioner's desire for a re-sentencing before a different judge, is based on conjectural and speculative allegations of vindictiveness, which have no basis in the Record, and which constitute pure "forum-shopping".

The Fourth District's affirmance of trial court's denial of Petitioner's suppression motion, as to tangible evidence, was proper, since the testimony of the police officers established that under the circumstances, the encounter between Petitioner and the officers was merely voluntary, and did not rise to the level of a stop requiring Fourth Amendment protections. The evidence further demonstrated, substantially and competently, the correctness of the Fourth District and trial court ruling that Petitioner's consent to the search of his bag was freely and voluntarily given.

The trial court's denial of a defense continuance, under the circumstances, was an appropriate exercise of discretion, and correctly interpreted as such by the Fourth District, given the history of prior defense continuances, the lack of diligence by appointed counsel, and the pattern of Petitioner's replacement of attorneys, at the last minute before trial. The prosecutor's reference to the uncontradicted and undisputed testimony of state witnesses, in closing argument, was a permissible comment on the evidence as it existed. Furthermore, the trial court's curative instruction demonstrated a lack of prejudice to Petitioner. Finally, the overwhelming evidence of Petitioner's guilt made such comment, if any error, harmless.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

SINCE QUANTITY OF DRUGS IS APPROPRIATE CIRCUMSTANCE OF CONVICTED OFFENSE, AND DOES NOT VIOLATE STATED PROSCRIPTIONS OF THIS COURT OR GUIDELINES AGAINST DEPATURE ON SUCH BASIS, IT CAN BE USED AS BASIS FOR DEPARTURE; CERTIFIED QUESTION SHOULD BE ANSWERED IN AFFIRMATIVE.

Petitioner has challenged reliance on the quantity of drugs possessed by a defendant, as a basis for a guidelines departure sentence, on the asserted basis that the Florida drug trafficking statute, and its mandatory minimum terms, have already accounted for and/or encompassed considerations of quantity. However, because of Petitioner's misconception of such an effect of the trafficking statute's mandatory minimum sentencing, and his attempt to base prohibition of considerations of drug quantities in sentencing departures in a way not contemplated under the guidelines, or trafficking statutes, this Court should approve the quantity of drugs as a basis for departure.

It is axiomatic that one of the most significant purposes of sentencing guidelines, is to provide punishment that is commensurate with the severity of the offense. Rule 3.701(b)(3), F.R.Crim.Pro. (1985). Prior to the introduction of guidelines sentencing in Florida, the amount of drugs in a defendant's possession was a significant factor in sentencing, and remains so as a factor "relating to the instant offense". Rule 3.701(d) (11), F.R.Crim.Pro. (1985); Mitchell v. State, 458 So.2d 10, 11

(Fla. 1st DCA 1984). Petitioner's trafficking conviction was for the crime of knowing sale, manufacture, delivery and/or possessing more than 400 grams of cocaine. §893.135(1)(b)(3), Fla. Stat. (1983). It totally ignores common sense, to suggest that the actual amount of drugs Petitioner had, would not be a relevant factor to the crime of trafficking. Rule 3.701(d)(11), supra; §893.135(1)(b), Fla. Stat. (1983).

Under these circumstances, it is highly significant that while Florida district appellate courts have distinguished the quantity of drugs as a sentencing departure factor, based on the degree of excess beyond that required for conviction of the drug offense, all such decisions have recognized that reliance on the amount of drugs involved is valid, as an appropriate factor relating to the convicted drug offense e.g. Colvin v. State, 12 F.L.W. 334 (Fla. 2nd DCA, January 21, 1987); Birchfield v. State, 497 So.2d 944 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986); Pedraza v. State, 493 So.2d 1122 (Fla. 3d DCA 1986); Coleman v. State, 491 So.2d 1292 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1986); Newton v. State, 490 So.2d 179 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986); Cortez v. State, 488 So.2d 163 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986); Jiminez v. State, 486 So.2d 36 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1986); Guerrero v. State, 484 So.2d 59 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1986); Mullen v. State, 483 So.2d 954 (Fla. 5th DCA 1986); Mitchell, supra. decisions are not limited to permitting reliance on large quantities of drugs as a basis for aggravated departure, but allow reliance on smaller quantities, and/or small value of property taken in theft prosecutions, as a basis for downward departure

State v. Pina, 487 So.2d 351 (Fla. 4th DCA 1986); State v. Villalovo, 481 So.2d 1303 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1986). These district courts seem to have had little trouble in determining that excessive amounts of drugs, that calculate to the outermost ranges of parameters needed for conviction, or that go way beyond the minimum amount of drugs required for conviction, are appropriate considerations for sentencing departures. Colvin, supra; Pedraza, supra; Coleman, supra; Jiminez, supra; Newton, supra; Guerrero, supra; Pursell v. State, 483 So.2d 94 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1986); Mitchell, supra. Even assuming arguendo the Fourth District's reliance on the amount of drugs Petitioner possessed, as 1337.41 grams (when over 400 grams were required for conviction), Pastor v. State, slip op, at 5, such an amount correlates to similar amounts of drugs that have been relied upon by appellate courts, to be a sufficient excess amount to support a departure sentence on that basis. Coleman (over 400 grams required for conviction; actual amount, 1000 grams); Guerrero (over 400 grams; 965.4 grams); Pursell, supra (over 400 grams; 1952.5 grams); Seastrand v. State, 474 So.2d 908 (Fla. 5th DCA 1985) (sale of LSD, 2,000 "hits" involved); Mitchell (over 20 grams, marijuana; actual amount, "entire bale" of marijuana); compare Jiminez (over 28 grams required for conviction, actual amount 28.35 grams; invalid as

Respondent maintains that the Fourth District was incorrect, in concluding that the evidence only supported proof of an amount of 1337.4 grams, since the evidence at trial, including Petitioner's own statements, supported the trial courts's conclusion that an amount of 3,000 grams was proved. Respondent's Statement of the Facts, supra. However, for purposes of analysis (continued on next page)

basis for departure); Pedraza (over 400, 468 grams, invalid as basis for departure); Gallo v. State, 483 So.2d 876 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1986) (between 28 and 200 grams; amount, 43.5 grams, invalid as basis for departure); Colvin, supra (between 20 and 200 grams; amount, 56 grams, invalid as basis for departure). These decisions clearly and consistently appear to support the trial court's departure in this case. ²

The reliance by various appellate courts, on excessive amounts of drugs possessed as an appropriate basis for departure, is consistent with this Court's recent recognition and approval of excessive brutality in violent crimes, as supporting a departure sentence. In Vanover v. State, 498 So.2d 899, 902 (Fla. 1986), this Court recognized that, while these were elements of force and brutality in every violent crime, the nature of the highly excessive brutality therein would constitute an appropriate basis for sentencing departure. Furthermore, in Casteel v. State, 498 So.2d 1249 (Fla. 1986), this Court additionally concluded that the emotional trauma caused to a sexual battery victim's child, while witnessing the attack, was a circumstance of the crime that would support departure, despite the existence of

of the issue in this Court, Respondent will refer to the Fourth District; s lower figure, since Respondent's viewpoints and arguments, if viewed as correct by this Court on the <u>lower</u> amount, would necessarily and certainly apply to the <u>higher</u> amount relied on by the trial court.

²Despite the Fourth District's doubts to the contrary, Pastor v. State, slip op, at 5, it appears from the Record that the trial court would appear to have clearly departed from the guidelines, as it did, even with the lesser amount affirmed by the Fourth District. (R, 429).

some level of trauma in every sexual battery case previously acknowledged in Lerma v. State, 497 So.2d 736, 739 (Fla. 1986). It is particularly significant that the Vanover decision permitted departure, in a case involving the imposition of a mandatory minimum sentence, as an enhancement for weapon use therein. Vanover, supra, at 901, 902. Thus, the recognition by this Court of excessive force, and particularly excessive psychological trauma, as providing support for a departure sentence despite the presence of such force or trauma in all like cases, should be consistently applied to include cases involving particularly excessive amounts of drugs. In light of Vanover and Casteel, this Court could so affirm Respondent's position, even if it were to conclude, as Petitioner argues, that the amount of drugs possessed is a consideration in every drug possession prosecution.

The structure of the drug trafficking statute, substantiates this conclusion that consideration of large quantities of drugs should be an appropriate basis for departure. Those defendants who commit a cocaine trafficking offense, are guilty of a first-degree felony, punishable by up to 30 years imprisonments, regardless of the amount of drugs involved. §893.135(1)(b), supra; §775.082(4)(b), Fla. Stat. (1983). Within this offense, there are statutory parameters, setting a "floor" and "ceiling" amount of between 28 to 200, and 200 to 400 grams, which support increased terms of mandatory minimum period of imprisonment. §893.135(1)(b)1;(1)(b)(2). Finally, in Petitioner's case, there

is a higher category, setting only a "floor" limitation, and punishing all those defendants who traffick in over 400 grams of cocaine, to a greater mandatory minimum term of imprison-§893.135(1)(b)3. Thus, for mandatory minimum purposes, a defendant who possess 200.0001 grams, for example, is punished in the same way, as an individual who had 399 grams. §893.135(1)(b)2, supra. More significantly, under the category of offense applied to Petitioner, a person with 401 grams, is punished the same way (for mandatory minimum purposes), as a person with 401,000 grams. $\S 893.135(1)(b)(3)$, supra. guidelines do not specifically account for any "aggravation" of amount, beyond the 400 gram "floor". Atwaters v. State, 495 So.2d 1219, 1220-1221 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986). Moreover, the guidelines do not distinguish in any way, between a defendant with 401 grams, and someone like Petitioner, with 1337.4 grams. Mitchell, supra, at 11. Thus, the "broad range" of §893.135(1)(b)3, in particular, with no distinction as to amounts within the category, does not duplicate or factor-in the kind of distinction made by the trial court herein. Atwaters, supra at 1221; Mitchell. In fact, the existence of broad categories itself, in §893. 135(1)(b), demonstrates a legislative intent, in terms of mandatory minimums, to punish commensurate with the crime, that is consistent with the punishment goals of guidelines sentencing. Rule 3.701(b)3; (d)(11), supra.

Petitioner's argument that mandatory minimum trafficking sentences, necessarily encompass aggravation of sentences, based on drug quantities involved, appears to

misconstrue the impact of mandatory minimum sentences in §893. 135(1)(b). As already noted, all cocaine traffickers can be punished, as first-degree offenders, for up to 30 years in prison. §893.135(1)(b), supra. It is axiomatic, since this 30 years sentence is not a mandatory or automatic penalty, that cocaine traffickers are and can be punished in an individualized manner, beyond the mandatory minimum term, and up to the maximum term (30 years) provided by law. (Compare §921.141; §782.04, Fla. Stat. (1985), the homocide statutes, which provide for two alternate and automatic penalties, in every first-degree murder case). Furthermore, the drug trafficking statute, provides for the reduction of even mandatory minimum sentences, based on individualized considerations of "substantial assistance". §893.135(3), Fla. Stat. (1983). The mandatory minimum provisions are merely a "floor" amount, which necessarily leaves room for individualized sentences, to the extent available between the applicable mandatory minimum (in a case like that of Petitioner, 15 years), and the maximum of 30 years. Therefore, on its own terms, the drug trafficking statute differentiates between defendants within the same category as Petitioner, and does not limit all such defendants to the same sentence within the maximum provided by law. To the extent possible, between the mandatory minimum sentence, and maximum provided by law, there is nothing about the trafficking statute that would account for, or be inconsistent with, guidelines departures based on the quantity of drugs possessed.

It is clear that the guidelines do not make any distinctions, as to amounts of drugs, in factoring-in a first-degree felony conviction under §893.135(1)(b), and at most, would only reflect the broad parameters of §893.135(1)(b)(3) ("over 400 grams" of cocaine), in taking a mandatory minimum sentence into account, for purposes of Rule 3.701(d)(9), Fla.R.Crim.Pro. (1985) (if mandatory minimum longer that guidelines state, mandatory minimum takes precedence). As stated in Mitchell and Atwaters, the specified amount, within the category of "over 400 grams", is not distinguished from any other amount by the guidelines. Atwaters, at 1221; Mitchell, at 11.

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